VILLAGE BOARD MEETING

Meeting Minutes: November 18, 2019

Board Present: Michael Dalton, Mayor Beth Larrabee, Trustee Klaus Proemm, Trustee

Others Present:

Gerald Ducharme, Village Attorney Brien Hallahan, Superintendent Jeff Murray, Code Officer Jim Putman, Rec. Director Sean O'Brien, Trustee Carol Pynchon, Trustee

Sally Noble, Clerk/Treasurer Jim Santimaw, Police Chief Cara Adams, Deputy Clerk

<u>PUBLIC HEARING:</u> Mayor Dalton opened the Public Hearing at 6:15pm.

LEGAL NOTICE

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Village of Canton Board of Trustees will hold a public hearing at the Courtroom in the Municipal Building at 60 Main Street, Canton, New York on Monday, November 18, 2019, commencing at 6:15pm, to consider a proposed local law which would amend the provisions of Chapter 26 (*"ETHICS, CODE OF"*) of the Canton Village Code, as follows: (a) Sections 26-1 through 26-10 of said Chapter 26 shall be repealed; and (b) new provisions shall be adopted, which shall comprise Chapter 26 of the Canton Village Code, under the title *"CODE OF ETHICS – Village of Canton, New York"*. Said new provisions, as stated in said local law, shall comprise Sections 26-1 through 26-22 of the revised Chapter 26. A copy of the proposed local law, and of the proposed disclosure statement referenced therein, may be reviewed at the office of the Village Clerk during regular business hours. The regular monthly meeting of the Canton Village Board of Trustees is scheduled to commence at 6:30pm on November 18, 2019, at which time the Board will consider and may take action on the proposed local law.

Mayor Dalton asked for public comment.

No public comment.

Trustee Pynchon thanked the Ethics Committee and the Village and Town Boards. She feels good about the Ethics Code. Ethics Code will be put in code book then they will put together a Ethics Board.

Trustee Pynchon made a motion to close the Public Hearing at 6:18pm. Trustee Proemm seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

JOINT MEETING: Mayor Dalton opened the Joint Meeting with the Town of Canton at 6:19pm.

Town of Canton Board Present:

Mary Ann Ashley, Supervisor Tim Danehy, Councilperson Bob Washo, Councilperson Phil LaMarche, Councilperson Jim Smith, Councilperson

Report on the Municipal Building Needs Assessment-

Rick Tague from BCA Architects & Engineering presented the report on the Municipal Building Needs Assessment. The report is on file in the Mayor's Office.

The cost of a new building would cost \$11.2 million and \$7.9 millon to make improvements to our current building.

Mr. Tatue is going to look into if the new building would fit on the current McDonald's space keeping our current building open until the new building is complete. Then the current building would be made into a parking lot.

Mayor Dalton had the Boards introduce themselves. Councilperson Elect Karin Blackburn was and Trustee Elect Anna Sorensen were introduced.

Complete Streets-

Toby Irven member of Complete Streets stated that he wanted to keep it on the Village and Town radar to call a meeting with St. Lawrence University, Architect Brooks Washburn, Complete Streets and Town and Village Board members regarding Miner Street Road and Miner Street.

Mayor Dalton stated that they have intentions to get all the parties together after the dust settles with Appleton Arena. Mayor Dalton has been in contact with them.

Trustee Larrabee asked if the timeline would impact what Brooks Washburn is doing?

Trustee Washo said a survey is being done and then will be given to Brooks Washburn for preliminary ideas.

After discussion, the Board's agreed that a meeting in the early winter would work.

Councilperson Washo made a motion to adjourn the Joint Meeting at 7:06PM. Trustee Larrabee seconded the motion All voted in favor. The motion carries.

ORDER OF BUSINESS: The Mayor opened the regular meeting at 7:06pm.

Mayor Dalton thanked Trustee O'Brien for his service and thoughts as Trustee. Mayor Dalton welcomed Anna Sorensen as Trustee Elect starting December 2, 2019.

a. Approve minutes of October 7 and October 21, 2019 – Trustee Proemm made a motion to approve the minutes of October 7 and October 21, 2019; seconded by Trustee O'Brien. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS:

Trustee Pynchon made a motion to accept the Department Head Reports; seconded by Trustee O'Brien. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

Superintendent Hallahan added that he will be attending a workshop at Clarkson on November 19, 2019.

Trustee Larrabee thanked DPW for filling in the potholes that just appeared.

Recreation Director Putman did not have anything to add to his report.

Trustee Pynchon gave props to Recreation Director Putman and staff for being good neighbors as people are looking for ice time with the renovations with Appleton Arena.

Code Officer Murray did not have anything to add to his report.

Economic Developer Rodriguez did not have anything to add to her report.

Treasurer Noble did not have anything to add to her report.

Mayor Dalton informed the Board that the Police back pay will be paid out soon.

Police Chief Santimaw informed the Board that they are looking at a better updated record keeping system. The software currently being used is outdated. The system is called Spillman, it is the same system that the Sheriff uses along with Potsdam Police Department. The system would be used for record keeping and communication. Chief Santimaw has received a proposal but is hoping there will be some movement with the numbers. He has a meeting to see what the number will be and if St. Lawrence County will be able to help with the cost. He estimates the cost to be approximately \$31,000. There would be a one-time buy in fee and then a yearly maintenance fee. St. Lawrence County will maintain the server. A decision will need to be made by year end. This is going to help with the upcoming law changes with Bail Reform and Discovery Changes. Chief Santimaw will inform the Board after his meeting.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

Sustainability Committee- Trustee Pynchon informed the Board that the meeting had a great turn out. Kyle Miller from DANC will be coming back to look at the compost program pilot.

Food & Ag Committee- Trustee Pynchon stated that they will be having a meeting soon to discuss if they will keep the compost pilot going in the winter months. A student from St. Lawrence University will be presenting at the December meeting on Climate

Vulnerability Assessment for Canton.

Communication and Technology- Trustee Pynchon stated that they are working on the Policy. Attorney Ducharme had suggestions and they will revisit the policy. The file sharing system through google drive will be launched by January 1st.

COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION:

Trustee Pynchon shared information from the North County Symposium.

- Ben Winchester spoke on rural narrative to focus on what our community has to offer and things to help attracting/retaining people in the community with resources and housing stock.
- Senator Gillibrand spoke about the \$50 Billion in the Rebuild Rural American Act.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

None

OLD BUSINESS:

a. Discuss and Possibly Approve Ethics Code- Trustee Pynchon stated that the Village worked with the Town on the language of the code but the codes will be separate. The Town of Canton has to look at language to be exempt from the Justices from the Ethics Code since the Justice sign a separate Court Ethics Code. Trustee Pynchon stated that she feels the Village could approve the Ethics Code even though the Town will be adding the exemptions to their code.

Attorney Ducharme stated that the exemption does not affect the Village since they do not have a Court.

Attorney Ducharme stated that the following typos would have to be changed in the code.

- Page 4; 26-7; Paragraph B replace the or to and.
- Page 5; A&B; Section 7 change to 26-8

Trustee Pynchon made a motion to approve the Ethics Code with the changes.

Town of Canton Board Members had questions about not having identical language in the Ethics Code due to the exemptions the Town needs to add. After further discussions with between the Village Board and Town Board Members the Village Board is comfortable moving forward with the Village Ethics Code.

Trustee Proemm seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

Village of Canton, New York Local Law _3____ of the year 2019

CODE OF ETHICS

Be it enacted by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Canton, New York, that by this Local Law, the provisions of Chapter 26 (*"ETHICS, CODE OF"*) of the Canton Village Code are hereby amended, as follows:

- *I.* Sections 26-1 through 26-10 of Chapter 26 are repealed, and shall be replaced by the new sections hereafter stated.
- *II.* The following provisions are hereby adopted, which shall comprise Chapter 26 of the Canton Village Code, under the title "*CODE OF ETHICS Village of Canton, New York*".

CODE OF ETHICS Village of Canton, New York

§26-1 <u>Legislative Intent</u>

WHEREAS, Article 18 of the General Municipal Law prohibits the officers and employees of a municipality from having certain conflicts of interest, and

WHEREAS, Section 806 of the General Municipal Law requires the governing body of each county, city, town, village, school district and fire district to adopt a code of ethics that sets forth for the guidance of its officers and employees standards of conduct reasonably expected of them, and also authorizes the governing body of any other municipality to adopt such a code of ethics, and

WHEREAS, a code of ethics adopted by the governing body of a municipality shall set forth standards of conduct for the guidance of the officers and employees of the municipality with respect to disclosure of interests in legislation before the local governing body, holding of investments in conflict with official duties, private employment in conflict with official duties, future employment, and such other standards as may be deemed advisable.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village of Canton, New York hereby adopts a code of ethics as herein set forth.

§26-2 <u>Purpose</u>

Officers and employees of the Village of Canton, New York, hold their positions to serve and benefit the public, and not for obtaining unwarranted personal or private gain in the exercise and performance of their official powers and duties. The Village of Canton, New York finds that, in furtherance of this fundamental principle, there is a need for clear and reasonable standards of ethical conduct. This Code of Ethics establishes those standards.

§26-3 <u>Definitions</u>

- A. "*BOARD*" means the governing board of a municipality and any municipal administrative board (*e.g., planning board, zoning board of appeals*), commission, or other agency or body comprised of two or more municipal officers or employees.
- B. "CODE" means this Code of Ethics.
- C. "*INTEREST*" means a direct or indirect financial or material benefit, but does not include any benefit arising from the provision or receipt of any services generally available to the residents or taxpayers of the municipality or an area of the municipality, or a lawful class of such residents or taxpayers. A municipal officer or employee is deemed to have an interest in any private organization when they or their spouse/partner or a member of their household, is an owner, partner, member, director, officer, employee, or directly or indirectly owns or controls more than 5% of the organization's outstanding stock.
- D. *"MUNICIPALITY"* means the Village of Canton, New York. The word *"municipal"* refers to the municipality.
- E. *"MUNICIPAL OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE* means a paid or unpaid officer or employee of the Village of Canton, New York, including, but not limited to, the members of any municipal board.
- F. *"RELATIVE"* means a spouse/partner, parent, grandparent, step-parent, sibling, step-sibling, sibling's spouse/partner, child, grandchild, child's spouse/partner, step-child, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, first cousin, or household member of a municipal officer or employee, and individuals having any of these relationships to the spouse/partner of the officer or employee.

§26-4 <u>Applicability</u>

This Code of Ethics applies to the officers and employees of the Village of Canton, New York, and shall supersede any prior municipal Code of Ethics. The provisions of this Code of Ethics shall apply in addition to all applicable State and local laws relating to conflicts of interest and ethics including, but not limited to, Article 18 of the General Municipal Law and all rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the Village of Canton, New York.

§26-5 <u>Prohibition on use of municipal position for personal or private gain</u>

No municipal officer or employee shall use their municipal position or official powers and duties to secure a financial or material benefit for them, a relative, or any private organization in which they are deemed to have an interest.

§26-6 Disclosure of interest in legislation and other matters

- A. Whenever a matter requiring the exercise of discretion comes before a municipal officer or employee, either individually or as a member of a board, and disposition of the matter could result in a direct or indirect financial or material benefit to them, a relative, or any private organization in which they are deemed to have an interest, the municipal officer or employee shall disclose in writing the nature of the interest.
- B. The disclosure shall be made when the matter requiring disclosure first comes before the municipal officer or employee, or when the municipal officer or employee first acquires knowledge of the interest requiring disclosure, whichever is earlier.
- C. In the case of a person serving in an elective office, the disclosure shall be filed with the governing board of the municipality. In all other cases, the disclosure shall be filed with the person's supervisor or, if the person does not have a supervisor, the disclosure shall be filed with the municipal officer, employee, or board having the power to appoint to the person's position. In addition, in the case of a person serving on a municipal board, a copy of the disclosure shall be filed with the board. Any disclosure made to a board shall be made publicly at a meeting of the board and must be included in the minutes of the meeting.

§26-7 <u>Annual disclosure</u>

- A. The following classes of officers and employees of the Village of Canton, New York, shall be required to file a signed Annual Disclosure Statement:
 - 1. Elected and appointed officials, including members of boards, commissions and public authorities of the government; and
 - 2. Employees who hold policymaking positions; an employee shall be considered to hold a policymaking position if they meet the following criteria, based either on the powers and duties of the position held as set forth in the job description or any applicable law or regulation, or based on the actual duties performed by the employee:
 - a. They have been determined to be managerial pursuant to Civil Service Law \$201(7) because they formulate policy; or
 - b. They are in the non-competitive class under §2.2 of the rules and regulations of the New York State Department of Civil Service, provided that the employee holds a position that is designated in any applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the County Civil Service Commission pursuant to Civil Service Law §20, on the basis that the position requires the performance of functions influencing policy; or
 - c. They exercise responsibilities of a broad scope in the formulation of plans for the implementation of goals or policy for Village or act as an advisor to an individual in such a position, and
 - 3. Officers and employees having discretionary authority with respect to:

- a. Contracts, leases, franchises, revocable consents, concessions, variances, special permits, or licenses; or
- b. The purchase, sale, rental, or lease of real property, personal property, or services, or a contract therefore; or
- c. The obtaining of grants of money or loans;
- d. Inspections; or
- e. The adoption or repeal of any rule or regulation having the force and effect of law.
- B. Annual disclosure statements, in form approved by and as may be amended from time to time by the Board of Trustees, shall be completed and filed with the Village Clerk; the Clerk shall make statements available to the Board of Ethics. Disclosure statements must be filed:
 - 1. Within 30 days of taking office, and
 - 2. No later than the 31st of January each calendar year thereafter, and
 - 3. Within 30 days after any change in the information contained in the most recently filed statement.

§26-8 <u>Recusal and abstention</u>

- A. No municipal officer or employee may participate in any decision or take any official action with respect to any matter requiring the exercise of discretion, including discussing the matter and voting on it, when they know or have reason to know that the action could confer a direct or indirect financial or material benefit on them, a relative, or any private organization in which they are deemed to have an interest.
- B. In the event that this section prohibits a municipal officer or employee from exercising or performing a power or duty:
 - 1. If the power or duty is vested in a municipal officer as a member of a board, then the power or duty shall be exercised or performed by the other members of the board; or
 - 2. If the power or duty is vested in a municipal officer individually, then the power or duty shall be exercised or performed by their deputy or, if the officer does not have a deputy, the power or duty shall be performed by another person to whom the officer may lawfully delegate the function.
 - 3. If the power or duty is vested in a municipal employee, they must refer the matter to their immediate supervisor, and the immediate supervisor shall designate another person to exercise or perform the power or duty.

§26-9 Prohibition inapplicable; disclosure, recusal and abstention not required

- A. This code's prohibition on use of a municipal position (\$26-5), disclosure requirements (\$26-6 and \$26-7), and requirements relating to recusal and abstention (\$26-8), shall not apply with respect to the following matters:
 - 1. Adoption of the municipality's annual budget;
 - 2. Any matter requiring the exercise of discretion that directly affects any of the following groups of people or a lawful class of such groups:
 - a. All municipal officers or employees;
 - b. All residents or taxpayers of the municipality or an area of the municipality; or
 - c. The general public; or
 - 3. Any matter that does not require the exercise of discretion.
- B. Recusal and abstention shall not be required with respect to any matter that:
 - 1. Comes before a board when a majority of the board's total membership would otherwise be prohibited from acting by \$26-8 of this code;
 - 2. Comes before a municipal officer when the officer would be prohibited from acting by \$26-8 of this code and the matter cannot be lawfully delegated to another person.

§26-10 <u>Investments in conflict with official duties</u>

- A. No municipal officer or employee may acquire the following investments:
 - 1. Investments that can be reasonably expected to require more than sporadic recusal and abstention under §26-8 of this code; or
 - 2. Investments that would otherwise impair the person's independence of judgment in the exercise or performance of their official powers and duties.
- B. This section does not prohibit a municipal officer or employee from acquiring any other investments or the following assets:
 - 1. Real property located within the municipality;
 - 2. Less than 5% of the stock of a publicly traded corporation; or
 - 3. Bonds or notes issued by the municipality and acquired more than one year after the date on which the bonds or notes were originally issued.

§26-11 Private employment in conflict with official duties

- A. No municipal officer or employee, during their tenure as a municipal officer or employee, may engage in any private employment, including the rendition of any business, commercial, professional or other types of services, when the employment:
 - 1. Can be reasonably expected to require more than sporadic recusal and abstention pursuant to *§*26-8 of this code;
 - 2. Can be reasonably expected to require disclosure or use of confidential information gained by reason of serving as a municipal officer or employee;
 - 3. Violates Section 805-a (1)(c) or (d) of the General Municipal Law ¹; or
 - 4. Requires representation of a person or organization other than the municipality in connection with litigation, negotiations or any other matter to which the municipality is a party.

§26-12 <u>Future employment</u>

- A. No municipal officer or employee may ask for, pursue or accept a private post-government employment opportunity with any person or organization that has a matter requiring the exercise of discretion pending before the municipal officer or employee, either individually or as a member of a board, while the matter is pending or within the 30 days following final disposition of the matter.
- B. No municipal officer or employee, for the two-year period after serving as a municipal officer or employee, may represent or render services to a private person or organization in connection with any matter involving the exercise of discretion before the municipal office, board, department or comparable organizational unit for which they serve.
- C. No municipal officer or employee, at any time after serving as a municipal officer or employee, may represent or render services to a private person or organization in connection with any

¹ General Municipal Law §805-a(1): No municipal officer or employee shall ...

c. receive, or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for services to be rendered in relation to any matter before any municipal agency of which he is an officer, member or employee or of any municipal agency over which he has jurisdiction or to which he has the power to appoint any member, officer or employee; or

d. receive, or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for services to be rendered in relation to any matter before any agency of his municipality, whereby his compensation is to be dependent or contingent upon any action by such agency with respect to such matter, provided that this paragraph shall not prohibit the fixing at any time of fees based upon the reasonable value of the services rendered.

particular transaction in which they personally and substantially participated while serving as a municipal officer or employee.

§26-13 <u>Personal representations and claims permitted</u>

- A. This code shall not be construed as prohibiting a municipal officer or employee from:
 - 1. Representing themselves or their spouse/partner or minor children before the municipality; or
 - 2. Asserting a claim against the municipality on their own behalf, or on behalf of their spouse/partner or minor children.

§26-14 <u>Use of municipal resources</u>

- A. Municipal resources shall be used for lawful municipal purposes. Municipal resources include, but are not limited to, municipal personnel and the municipality's money, vehicles, equipment, materials, supplies or other property.
- B. No municipal officer or employee may use or permit the use of municipal resources for personal or private purposes, but this provision shall not be construed as prohibiting:
 - 1. Any use of municipal resources authorized by law or municipal policy;
 - 2. The use of municipal resources for personal or private purposes when provided to a municipal officer or employee as part of their compensation; or
 - 3. The occasional and incidental use during the business day of municipal telephones and computers for necessary personal matters such as family care and changes in work schedule.
- C. No municipal officer or employee shall cause the municipality to spend more than the established per diem for transportation, meals or lodging in connection with official travel, without prior approval.

§26-15 <u>Interests in contracts</u>

- A. No municipal officer or employee may have an interest in a contract that is prohibited by Section 801 of the General Municipal Law.
- B. Every municipal officer and employee shall disclose interests in contracts with the municipality at the time and in the manner required by Section 803 of the General Municipal Law.

§26-16 <u>Nepotism</u>

A. Except as otherwise required by law:

- 1. No municipal officer or employee, either individually or as a member of a board, may participate in any decision specifically to appoint, hire, promote, discipline or discharge a relative for any position at, for or within the municipality or a municipal board.
- 2. No municipal officer or employee may supervise a relative in the performance of the relative's official powers or duties.

§26-17 <u>Political solicitations</u>

- A. No municipal officer or employee shall directly or indirectly compel or induce a subordinate municipal officer or employee to make, or promise to make, any political contribution, whether by gift of money, service or other thing of value (*e.g., petition signatures, etc.*).
- B. No municipal officer or employee may act or decline to act in relation to appointing, hiring or promoting, discharging, disciplining, or in any manner changing the official rank, status or compensation of any municipal officer or employee, or an applicant for a position as a municipal officer or employee, on the basis of the giving or withholding or neglecting to make any contribution of money or service or any other valuable thing for any political purpose.

§26-18 <u>Confidential information</u>

No municipal officer or employee who acquires confidential information in the course of exercising or performing their official powers or duties may disclose or use such information unless the disclosure or use is required by law or in the course of exercising or performing their official powers and duties.

§26-19 <u>Gifts</u>

- A. No municipal officer or employee shall solicit, accept or receive a gift in violation of Section 805-a(1)(a) of the General Municipal Law as interpreted in this section.
- B. For purposes of this section, a "*gift*" includes anything of value, whether in the form of money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise. The value of a gift is the gift's fair market value, determined by the retail cost of the item or a comparable item. The fair market value of a ticket entitling the holder to food, refreshments, entertainment, or any other benefit is the face value of the ticket, or the actual cost to the donor, whichever is greater. Determination of whether multiple gifts from a single donor exceed the value of \$75 must be made by adding together the value of all gifts received from the donor by an officer or employee during the 12-month period preceding the receipt of the most recent gift.
- C. No municipal officer or employee may directly or indirectly solicit any gift.
- D. No municipal officer or employee may accept or receive any gift, or multiple gifts from the same donor, having an annual aggregate value of \$75 or more when:

- 1. The gift reasonably appears to be intended to influence the officer or employee in the exercise or performance of their official powers or duties.
- 2. The gift could reasonably be expected to influence the officer or employee in the exercise or performance of their official powers or duties.
 - a. A gift to a municipal officer or employee is presumed to be intended to influence the exercise or performance of their official powers or duties when the gift is from a private person or organization that seeks municipal action involving the exercise of discretion by or with the participation of the officer or employee.
- 3. The gift is intended as a reward for any official action on the part of the officer or employee.
 - a. A gift to a municipal officer or employee is presumed to be intended as a reward for official action when the gift is from a private person or organization that has obtained municipal action involving the exercise of discretion by or with the participation of the officer or employee during the preceding 12 months.
- E. This section does not prohibit any other gift, including:
 - 1. Gifts made to the municipality;
 - 2. Gifts from a person with a family or personal relationship with the officer or employee when the circumstances make it clear that the personal relationship, rather than the recipient's status as a municipal officer or employee, is the primary motivating factor for the gift;
 - 3. Gifts given on special occasions, such as marriage, illness, or retirement, which are modest, reasonable and customary;
 - 4. Unsolicited advertising or promotional material of little intrinsic value, such as pens, pencils, note pads, and calendars;
 - 5. Awards and plaques having a value of \$75 or less which are publicly presented in recognition of service as a municipal officer or employee, or other service to the community; or
 - 6. Meals and refreshments provided when a municipal officer or employee is a speaker or participant at a job-related professional or educational conference or program and the meals and refreshments are made available to all participants.

§26-20 <u>Board of Ethics</u>

A. There is hereby established a Board of Ethics for the Town and Village of Canton, New York.

- 1. The Board of Ethics shall consist of five members, none of whom is otherwise an elected or appointed officer or employee of either municipality.
- 2. The members of the Board of Ethics shall be appointed by the Village and Town of Canton, New York, as follows: two appointments by the Village, two appointments by the Town, one appointment that is mutually agreed upon by both municipal Boards.
- 3. Members of the Board of Ethics will fill two-year terms. The initial appointment following adoption of this code will be for one- and two-year terms to allow for staggered succession.
- 4. Members of the Board of Ethics serve at the pleasure of the appointing authorities, and receive no salary or compensation for their services as members of the Board of Ethics.
- B. The Board of Ethics shall render advisory opinions to the officers and employees of the Village and Town of Canton, New York, with respect to Article 18 of the General Municipal Law and this code.
 - 1. Advisory opinions shall be rendered pursuant to the written request of any such officer or employee under such rules and regulations as the Board of Ethics may prescribe.
 - 2. The Board of Ethics shall have the advice of legal counsel for the Town of Canton, New York and the Village of Canton, New York.
 - 3. The Board of Ethics may make recommendations with respect to the drafting and adoption of a code of ethics, or amendments thereto, upon the request of the Village and Town of Canton, New York.

§26-21 <u>Posting and distribution</u>

- A. The Village Clerk shall promptly post a copy of this code, and a copy of any amendment to this code, publicly and conspicuously in each building under the municipality's control. The code shall be posted within ten days following the date on which the code takes effect. An amendment to the code shall be posted within ten days following the date on which the amendment takes effect.
 - B. The Village Clerk shall promptly distribute a copy of this code, including any amendments to the code, to every person who is or becomes an officer and employee of the Village of Canton, New York.
 - C. Every municipal officer or employee who receives a copy of this code or an amendment to the code must acknowledge such receipt in writing. Such acknowledgments shall be filed with the Village Clerk, who shall maintain such acknowledgments as a public record.

D. The failure to post this code or an amendment to the code does not affect either the applicability or enforceability of the code or the amendment. The failure of a municipal officer or employee to receive a copy of this Code of Ethics or an amendment to the code, or to acknowledge receipt thereof in writing, does not affect either the applicability or enforceability of the code or amendment to the code.

§26-22 <u>Enforcement</u>

Any municipal officer or employee who violates this code may be censured, fined, suspended or removed from office or employment in the manner provided by law.

- *III.* This Local Law shall be effective immediately upon its filing with the Office of the New York Secretary of State.
 - **b.** Zoning Audit Update- Trustee Pynchon stated Monica Ryan was here the first meeting to give the Zoning Audit recommendations.

Attorney Ducharme gave an overview on the following recommendations:

- Expand the definitions
- Common language throughout the code.
- Remove/limit Special Exemptions
- Need to decide in our contract to have Monica share zoning revamps that she has been working on with other municipalities to help with the language.
- Move some codes into the Zoning Chapter. Example Sign Code
- Clear up Functions of the Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals
- Should the Village Board be doing Subdivision Reviews?

Trustee Pynchon is going to follow up with Monica to see what is next.

- **c.** Approve Golf Cart Lease Proposal- Trustee Pynchon made a motion to approve the Golf Course Lease. Trustee O'Brien seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries.
- **d. Information Resources and Technology Use Policy-** Discussed under Committee Reports.

NEW BUSINESS:

a. Authorize payment of vouchers & transfer of funds- Trustee Larrabee made a motion to authorize payment of vouchers & transfer of funds # 6 of 2019-2020. Trustee Proemm seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

General Fund	\$224,536.43	Golf Course	\$22,138.25
--------------	--------------	-------------	-------------

Water Fund	\$22,221.28	Joint Activity	\$7,561.65
Sewer Fund	\$15,814.89		

b. Discuss Judson Street Improvements- Ethan Townsend wants the Board to put the effort into putting Judson Street improvements as a priority in the budget. He would like to see something done with the safety including raised crosswalks and three lanes in front of DSS for the bus stop.

Superintendent Hallahan stated that the County might fund the bus lane and that the line striping will happen in the spring.

Mayor Dalton stated he is interested in pursuing what is in the report from Complete Streets. He will receive what the cost of the raised crosswalks will be from Superintendent Hallahan.

Superintendent Hallahan stated that he will continue to meet with the County and discuss options. He plans to speak with Eric Backus regarding his study.

Trustee Proemm made a motion to accept the Engineering Report and Complete Street Recommendations contingent on the budget. Trustee Larrabee seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

c. Discuss Capital Improvement Exemption- Tabled

d. Discuss and Take Action on Local Law to Annex Argent Property- Trustee Pynchon made a motion to approve the Local Law to Annex the Argent Property. Trustee O'Brien seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries. Public hearing will be set at a later date for the zoning designation.

Village of Canton, New York Local Law <u>4</u> of the year 2019

LOCAL LAW: Annexation of Property Owned by Argent Developments, LLC

Be it enacted by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Canton, New York, as follows:

- A. This local law is made and filed pursuant to General Municipal Law §714.
- B. The Village of Canton, New York hereby annexes from the territory of the Town of Canton, New York, the property owned by Argent Developments, *LLC*. Said property is described in deed recorded with the St. Lawrence County Clerk on May 14, 2014 at Instrument #2014-6215. The said property is located on Sullivan Drive in the Town of Canton, and is further described as Tax Parcel #74.004-7-13.11.
- C. Chapter A330 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Canton, titled "Annexations," is accordingly amended by the following addition:

<u>L.L. No.</u> <u>4</u> - 2019	<u>Adoption Date</u> 11-18-19	Long Title A local law annexing to the Village of Canton, New York from the territory of the Town of Canton, New York, property owned by Argent Developments, <i>LLC</i> . Said property is described in deed recorded with the St. Lawrence County Clerk on May 14, 2014 at Instrument #2014-6215. The said property is located on Sullivan Drive in the Town of Canton
		Clerk on May 14, 2014 at Instrument #2014-6215. The said property is located on Sullivan Drive in the Town of Canton, and is further described as Tax Parcel #74.004-7-13.11.

- D. This local law shall be effective immediately upon filing with the Secretary of State.
- e. **BOA Public Outreach-** Trustee Pynchon informed the Board there will be a Public Outreach on Wednesday at 5:30pm at TAUNY Center. The Consultant and Subconsultants will be in attendance.

Thursday (November 21, 2019) at 9:30am the Economic Steering Committee and the consultants will be meeting at Cascade parking lot to walk the Gouverneur Street Gateway. Everyone is welcome to attend.

f. Arbor Day Proclamation- Trustee Pynchon made a motion to accept the Arbor Day Proclamation. Trustee Larrabee seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Motion carries.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

None

Mayor Dalton reminded the Board that the Organizational Meeting is December 2, 2019 at 6:00pm.

EXECUTIVE SESSION- Trustee Larrabee made a motion to enter into executive session at

7:58pm for a purpose as identified in Public Officers Law 105(1) (h). Trustee O'Brien seconded the motion. All in favor. The motion carries.

Trustee Pynchon made a motion to come out of executive session at 8:23PM. The motion was seconded by Trustee Larrabee. All voted in favor. The motion carries.

Trustee Proemm made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:25PM. Trustee O'Brien seconded the motion All voted in favor. The motion carries.

Respectfully submitted,

Cara Adams Deputy Clerk